
          

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH BAY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 10, 2022 
1:00 P.M. 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.sbaycdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 

www.sbaycdd.org


 

 
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

AGENDA 
SOUTH BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Sunset Grill and Beach Bar 
602 Bahia Del Sol Drive 
Ruskin, Florida 33570 

Conference Call 1-888-278-0296 Access Code 8308397 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

June 10, 2022 
1:00 P.M. 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………........Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Approval of Minutes 

1. May 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………….....................................Page 2 

F. Old Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Parking Information 

2. Discussion Regarding POA Adding Street Lights 

G. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget……..Page 7 

2. Discussion Regarding Supervisor Compensation 

H. Reports 
1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financial Report…………………………………………………………………………....Page 17 

2. Legal Report 

3. Engineer’s Report 

4. Chairman’s Report 

5. POA Report 

6. Bond Holder’s Report 

7. Landowner’s Report 

I. Administrative Matters 

J. Comments by the Public for Matters not on the Agenda 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 

SOUTH BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 13, 2022 
Due to COVID restrictions, masks and social distancing was required. 

Audience participation was encouraged via conference call at: 
1-888-278-0296 Access Code 8308397 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

The May 13, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the South Bay Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 1:03 p.m. at the Sunset Grill and Beach Bar located at 602 Bahia del 
Sol Drive, Ruskin, Florida 33570. 

B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

Proof of publication was presented that indicated Notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Tampa Bay Times on September 29, 2021, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2021/2022 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 

C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

It was determined that the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and was in order for the meeting 
to commence: 

Chairman W. Thomas Grimm Present 

Vice Chairman Brett Vogeler Present 

Supervisor Kelly Evans Present 

Supervisor Leah Popelka Present 

Supervisor Vacant 

The following staff were in attendance: 

District Manager William Crosley Special District Services, Inc. 
District Engineer Rick Brylanski Hole Montes, Inc. 

Also present were those indicated on the sign-in sheet and Kathy Watkins via telephone. 

D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. March 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 

The March 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for consideration. 

Page 1 of 5 

Page 2



 
 

 
  

 

 

 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

A motion was made by Ms. Evans, seconded by Ms. Popelka and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the March 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 

F. OLD BUSINESS 

Chairman Grimm brought up the Seawall Easement Agreement, the Dock Declaration Agreement, and 
the reassessment of the entire District as three key items in addition to the list of things that were 
presented by District Counsel David Smith to accomplish prior to turnover of control of the Board to the 
residents.  Chairman Grimm advised that he has requested the attendance of the Property Owner 
Associations, Homeowners Associations and the public to be more involved by providing feedback to 
the Board on all of those items, but he was not aware of hearing anything from those sources.  Chairman 
Grimm also stated that he did not want the current Board to adopt any policies without that input because 
it could directly affect those people and if no input is received, he felt that the current Board should not 
spend the time and money trying to accomplish those things.  Mr. Grimm stated that the Property Owners 
Association gets involved in items such as pavers, or parking, but not nearly enough on items associated 
with future assessments or how assessments could be decided.    

G. NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discussion Regarding Parking Information 

Kent Wanninger presented the proposal from Pave Mobility, which was included in the meeting book. 
Mr. Wanninger explained the paid parking process and answered some general questions.  The proposal 
was unanimously approved by the POA board and received most favorably by the residents during their 
Zoom meeting. Chairman Grimm asked that the POA come back to the June meeting to discuss this 
item with District Counsel, who is not in attendance at today’s meeting.  Supervisor Popelka stated that 
she felt that before the June meeting District Counsel should be consulted on the legal questions 
regarding paid parking so it will be ready for discussion during that meeting. Supervisor Popelka agreed 
to discuss this matter with District Staff before the next meeting.  There was a lengthy discussion, but 
no action was taken by the Board on this matter.  

2. Discussion Regarding POA Adding Street Lights 

Mr. Crosley reported that District Counsel had reviewed the contract provided by Tampa Electric 
Company for the installation of additional street lighting along Sea Grape Drive and there were some 
concerns from District Counsel regarding its language.  Mr. Cloud has been communicating with TECO 
regarding these concerns and when an update is ready, it will be brought to the Board.  Chairman Grimm 
stated that it is possible that Counsel would not recommend the District enter into an agreement with 
TECO for the lights to be installed along Sea Grape Drive in the event those concerns were unable to be 
addressed. 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Numbering & Labelling District Board Seats for East 
of Future Elections 

Resolution No. 2022-01 was presented, entitled: 

RESOLUTION 2022-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SOUTH BAY 
COMMUNITY DISTRICT NUMBERING & LABELLING DISTRICT BOARD 

Page 2 of 5 

Page 3



 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

 

  
 

 
 
 

SEATS FOR EASE OF FUTURE ELECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

There were no questions from the Board. 

A motion was made by Ms. Popelka, seconded by Ms. Evans and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-01, as presented; Chairman W. Thomas Grimm’s seat shall be hereafter numbered 
and labelled Seat No. 1, expiring in November 2024; Vice Chairman Brett Vogeler’s seat shall be 
hereafter numbered and labelled Seat No. 2, expiring in November 2022; Supervisor Kelly Evans’ seat 
shall be hereafter numbered and labelled Seat No. 3, expiring in November 2024; Supervisor Leah 
Popelka’s seat shall be hereafter numbered and labelled Seat No. 4, expiring in November 2022; and the 
late Supervisor Robert McCarthy’s seat shall be hereafter numbered and labelled Seat No. 5, expiring 
on November 2022. 

H. REPORTS 
1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financial Report 

Mr. Crosley presented the financial report. There were no questions from the Board Members. 

2. Legal Report 

There was no Legal Report at this time. 

3. Engineer’s Report 

Mr. Brylanski reported that the road striping would be looked at to help make it easier for vehicles to 
understand the proper flow of traffic where Bahia Beach Road intersects with exit road from the privately 
owned parking lot that is near the marina. Mr. Brylanski also reported that he was working on 
completing the project to provide uniform signage throughout the District.  There are some signs and 
sign posts that are not consistent with new signs. The POA will look for records to see where the signage 
was purchased from previously and the supplier and forward that information on to the District.  

Mr. Brylanski reported that the inspection of the entrance bridge found no structural issues or failures. 
The bridge is in structurally sound shape, but the pavers and containment curbs, which hold the pavers 
in place, need to be redone. These major repairs should be deferred until construction is near completion. 
The pavers currently have some depressions near the guard house entrance that should be repaired now. 
There was a consensus of the Board for the temporary paver repairs to move forward at a cost not to 
exceed $3,500, subject to the approval of the scope of work by the District Engineer.  Chairman Grimm 
stated that he felt the POA’s contractor, JMAC, was doing a good job on any needed minor road 
maintenance. 

There had been some discussions regarding creating new crosswalks in specific locations along Bahia 
Beach Boulevard, which a proposal will come to the Board as soon as it is ready.  

4. Chairman’s Report 

There are portable signs, a dumpster and other materials located on District property near the marina on 
Sea Grape Drive and he asked that they be removed. 

Page 3 of 5 

Page 4



 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
  
  
 

 
   
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

5. POA Report 

Discussion began regarding the proposed draft budget that the POA provided to the District for 
consideration. The POA is currently power washing the curbs, gutters and sidewalks throughout the 
District. This expense was requested in the POA 2022/2023 budget.  The current approved 2021/2022 
POA budget reflects monthly payments of $20,377.  The draft proposed 2022/2023 budget requested 
from the POA reflects a monthly payment of $42,252, which is a monthly increase of $21, 875. 
Chairman Grimm stated that there appeared to be expenses included in the budget that were not District 
expenses. Annual expenses should be separate from individual projects.  The Board requested that the 
POA bring back a budget that reflects only justified District expenses and a more reasonable request for 
reimbursement of expenses identifying reasonable line items.  

6. Bondholder’s Report 

There was no Bondholder’s Report at this time. 

7. Landowners’ Report 
a. Update on Antigua Cove Phase IIIB 

There was no update on this item at this time. 

b. Status of Forcemain Construction 

There was no update on this item at this time. 

I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

Mr. Crosley sadly reported that Supervisor Robert McCarthy had passed away since the last meeting and 
asked for a moment of silence.  There was discussion regarding the filling of Supervisor McCarthy’s 
seat. Anyone interested in serving for the remainder of the term, which ends in November at the 
Landowners’ Meeting, should provide an information sheet/resume to the District Manager for 
consideration.  That seat will be by appointment by the Board and that appointment will serve until 
November’s Landowners’ Meeting, where an election will be held. 

The next meeting is scheduled for June 10, 2022.  The proposed budget will be reviewed at that meeting. 

J. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 

K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

There were no further comments from the Board Members. 

L. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Popelka, seconded 
by Ms. Evans to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 3:01 p.m. That motion passed unanimously. 

Page 4 of 5 

Page 5



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5 of 5 

Page 6



 
 

  

 
 

   

 
 

 
  

 
 

  

 
   

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 
  

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SOUTH 
BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the South Bay Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SOUTH BAY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 

Section 2. A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for , 2022 
at 1:00 p.m.  in the Sunset Grill and Beach Bar, 602 Bahia Del Sol Drive, Ruskin, Florida 33570, 
for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 10th day of June, 2022. 

ATTEST: SOUTH BAY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: By: 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 7



 South Bay
Community Development District

 Proposed Budget For
 Fiscal Year 2022/2023

 October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023 

Page 8



 

 

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

Page 9



 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

   

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

   

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

   

   

   
   

   

   
   

   

  

   

   Page 10



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

    

     

    

 

 

     

     

     

    

     

     

     

     

     

     

       

     

     

     

     

     

     

      

     

     

     

     

     

    

 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

    

    

    

       

     

    

       

       

    

     

    

   Page 11



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

     

     

     

    

     

    

 

     

     

     

     

     

    

      

 
  

  
 

 

 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 

   Page 12



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

     

     

     

     

    

 

     

     

     

     

     

      

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
  

  
  

  
 

 

 
  

  
  

  

 

   Page 13



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

   

   
   
   

   
   

   
   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   
   

   
   
   

   
   

  

 
 

   
  

  
  

  

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 
 

  
  

  

   Page 14



 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

     

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

     

  
  

  
 

   Page 15



 
 

    

     

     

      

      

      

     

      

      

     

     

      

      

     

     

      

      

      

      

      

      

  

  

  

 

   Page 16



 South Bay 
Community Development District

 Financial Report For 
April 2022 

Page 17



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

 
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

      

 
     

     
     

     
     

     
     

      

      

      

         

      

         
         

        

     

        

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Page 18



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

Page 19



 

 
 

       

 

 

 

        

        

        

 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

Page 20



 

 
 

       

 

 

 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

 

        

        

        

        

        

        

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 21


	South Bay Community Development District - June 10, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	May 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget
	Financial Report




